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About us
Botswana Medical Aid Society (BOMaid)
was established in 1969 by a consortium
which drew its initial membership from
audit firms, parastatals and banking
organisations in Botswana.
The Society is a member-based medical
aid scheme, self-administered through
an elected Board of Management drawn
from amongst its constituent members
companies.
BOMaid is a member of the Board
of Healthcare Funders (BHF), a
representative body for medical aid
schemes within Southern Africa.

Our Vision
To be the medical aid of choice

Our Mission
To provide competitive and diverse
health care funding through innovation
and service excellence
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Chairman’s Report (cont.)
As we report for the year that has just ended, we are also looking forward
as the Board of Management to ensuring growth and sustainability
of the Society’s Fund in the years ahead. In 2011 we focused on our
strategy for the next 5 years which will usher in significant changes in the
way we do business. This shift is important as we seek to respond to the
challenges of current world economic climate, increased regulation and
competitiveness. Our success will depend much on our ability to quickly
adapt to changes in our landscape either in the Health Sector in general
or specifically the medical aid industry.
I am happy to report that our performance in 2011 has been strong. Our
subscriber membership grew at more than12% against Private Medical
Aid Industry growth of 4%. We also posted significant growth in our
financial performance with a total comprehensive income of P36m and
a 14% growth in total assets to P297m.
The Economic and Market environment
During the year, more of our constituent members opened up their
schemes to allow their employees choice of medical aid provider. Whilst
this takes away our advantage, we have embraced the development as
necessary to enhance competition and a challenge to us to continuously
improve our service to members and remain truly “the medical aid of
choice”.
REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
In the past couple of years, there have been overtures of regulation
of the medical aid industry. We believe that work in this regard is at a
fairly advanced stage and we should see the initial phases of regulation
in the ensuing year. We have taken note that regulation will bring
significant changes in the industry which will bring factors which we are
not accustomed to such as new costs of compliance. I however take
comfort in the fact that in 2011 we took a forward looking approach
in formulating our strategy and we have continuously benchmarked
against best industry practices regionally. We therefore expect no major
shocks in the way we have planned to do bussiness as a Society in the
comming years.

should be continued engagement by stakeholders in the industry, both
funders and service providers to ensure that as a country we continue to
improve access to quality health care, both private and public.
Society Re-Organisation
The Board of Management has completed the organisational redesign
of the Society as promised in my previous year’s report. We believe that
we have laid strong foundations for future growth and sustainability of
the Society’s fund upon which we will build during 2012 and beyond.
The medical aid industry landscape has changed and so is the way we
must conduct our business. As part of the organisational redesign of
the Society, the Board of Management will be seeking endorsement
from the Annual General Meeting on the separation of the administration
function from the Society and its transfer to a !00% owned subsidiary of
the Society. The subsidiary will also take care of and further develop the
related businesses of the Society in order to diversify the income of the
Society and bring better value to members.
Acknowledgements
In conclusion, I would like to thank my fellow board members, the
executive management and staff for their commitment and hard work
throughout 2011 but more importantly the general membership in whom
we are fully indebted for their support and trust in the Society.

Abel Bogatsu
Chairman

NBFIRA
The Non Banking Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA) is
the body that is expected to regulate Medical Aid Funds. The Authority
is still in the process of refining the model of regulation for Medical Aid
Funds
As mentioned previously, I have full confidence that as a Society we are
well positioned to adapt to the new regulatory environment.
Competition Authority
It is also important to note the commencement of business of the
Competitions Authority in the third quarter of 2011 as by the end the
year some service providers had lodged a complaint against the industry
challenging the medical aid tariff setting practices which hit at the very
core of the mandate of any medical aid fund. Our belief is that there
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Corporate Governance
Botswana Medical Aid Society subscribes to the tenets of Corporate
Governance. Accordingly and in line with the rules of the Society, the Board
of Management is ultimately accountable to the Members of the Society. In
recognition of this responsibility, the Board has committed itself to the highest
standards of Corporate Governance through adopting a Board Charter.
Through this Charter, the Board takes the responsibility of setting the
Society’s strategic direction, developing key policies, approving the budget
and monitoring implementation of the approved strategy through periodic
reporting by Management. The Board further takes the ultimate responsibility
of ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements, reporting standards and
the Society’s Book of Rules.
Board Structure and Composition
In accordance with the Society’s Constitution, the Board is comprised of ten
Members elected and appointed by the General Membership of the Society
from the representatives of the Society’s Constituent Bodies. The Board
further includes one Ex- Officio Member, being the Chief Executive Officer of
the Society, who is appointed by the Board. The ten elected Board Members
serve for a maximum of two terms of three years each. A Chairman is elected
from the ten Members.
During the year under review, Dr. B Sikwa retired from the Board and the
vacancy was filled by the Board through appointing Mr. B. E Nthoi.
Board Meetings
The Board meets at least four times a year. During the year, the Board met
seven times.

Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee comprises a total of four members.
The main function of this Committee is to assist the Board in discharging its
duties of ensuring prudent management of financial matters and managing
risks facing the Society. The Committee continuously reviews reports on
the management of internal controls, risk management and management
accounts and makes the requisite recommendations for approval by the
Board.
During the year, the following Board Members were on the Committee:
Mr S.L Bogatsu		
Chairperson
Mr G.C Rutta		
Member
Mrs J.M Monyake 		
Member
Mrs R Mgadla		
Member
Staff Welfare and Compensation Committee
The function of this Committee is to advise the Board on Human Resources
policies and strategies, including remuneration and the appointment of officers
of the Society.
During the year, the following Board Members were on the Committee:
Ms. F Sebeela		
Mrs. M. Molebatsi		
Mrs R Mgadla		
Mrs. J Monyake		
Ms. S. Sealetsa		

-

Chairperson
Member
Member
Member
Member

Appeals and Service Quality Committee
Board Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration rates for Board Members were as follows:
Board Chairman 		
Board Members 		
Committee Chairperson
Committee Members

- 		
-		
-		
-		

P 1050 per sitting
P 840 per sitting
P 525 per sitting
P 420 per sitting

Board Committees
In line with the standards of good Corporate Governance, the Society’s
Constitution and the Board Charter provide for the establishment of
designated Board Committees, in order to assist the Board to deliver on its
mandate. Where it deems fit, the Board can delegate some of its powers to
these designated Committees. In delegating its powers, the Board ensures
that such delegated authority is express and where it has not been expressed,
the Committees recommend the final decision to the Board. This however
does not transfer any of the responsibilities of the Board to the respective
Committees. The Board remains ultimately accountable to the Members of
the Society. During the year under review, the Board had three Committees.
The Chairman sat on none of these.
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This Committee assists the Board in carrying out its responsibility to assess
appeals from the Society’s Members and to foster a culture of service
excellence.
During the year, the following Board Members were on the Committee:
Ms S. Sealetsa		
Mrs. M. Molebatsi		
Ms F. Sebeela		
Mr. G Rutta		

-

Chairperson
Member
Member
Member
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Corporate Governance (cont.)
Board Attendance Register

2011
Meeting Date

2012

22/06

30/06

15/09

28/09

08/12

21/12

02/02

29/02

24/05

01/06

A Bogatsu

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

D Alexander

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

S Sealetsa

A

A

P

A

A

A

P

P

P

A

F Sebeela

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

A

P

P

R Mgadla

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

A

P

A

S Bogatsu

P

A

P

A

A

A

P

P

P

A

M Molebatsi

A

A

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

J Monyake

A

A

A

P

P

P

A

P

P

A

G Rutta

A

A

P

A

P

P

P

A

P

P

B Sikwa

P

P

P

P

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

B Nthoi

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

P

P

A

A

A

P

P - Present

A - Absent/Apology

N/A - Not Applicable/Member not in Board			

Committees Attendance Register

Meeting Date
A Bogatsu
D Alexander
S Sealetsa
F Sebeela
R Mgadla
S Bogatsu
M Molebatsi
J Monyake
G Rutta
B Sikwa
P - Present

APPEALS & SERVICE QUALITY
STAFF WELFARE & COMPENSATION
FINANCE, AUDIT & RISK
2011
2012
2011
2012
2011
2012
15/07 27/09 21/11 30/01 03/05 14/09 27/09 11/05 24/05 24/05 19/12 01/02 23/02
10/05 31/05
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
N/A
N/A
A
A
A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
P
P
A
P
A
P
P
P
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
A
A
A
P
P
P
P
A
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
A
P
P
P
A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
A
P
P
P
P
P
A
A
A
P
P
A
A
A
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
N/A
N/A
P
P
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
A - Absent/Apology

N/A - Not Applicable/Member not in Committee
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Executive Management

C

D

A
B
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Executive Management (cont.)
A
Dennis J Alexander
Chief Executive Officer
B
Constance Matabiswana
General Manager - Operations
C
Bennett Maifala
Human Resource Manager
D
Biya Debele
General Manager - Corporate Services
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Chief Executive’s Report

Dennis J Alexander
Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Executive’s Report (cont.)
GENERAL OVERVIEW
At this time of the year we look back to take stock of the achievements
and challenges of the past twelve months as well as to share our
thinking around future developments within our organisation. My report
will therefore primarily address the operations and performance of the
Society for the period ended December 2011.

hand, operating costs excluding the re-organisation costs reflects an
increase of 15.5% year on year.

The Society is measured within the economic environment where the
average annual inflation stood at 8.5%. In the currency market the Pula
appreciated against the South African Rand for most part of the year. As
such we reflect some positive impact on our South African based claims
during 2011.

Group Total Assets increased by P37.6mln or 14.5% to end the year at
P297.5mln with Funds and Reserves standing at P264.3mln.

The year witnessed the further strengthening of the regulatory
environment with the ushering in of the Competition Authority which
did not spare any time in taking on the operational “status quo” of the
industry by mentioning industry partners in one or two of its maiden
investigations.

THE SOCIETY

As mentioned in his last year’s address the Chairman noted that “it had
become apparent that the industry landscape will change substantially
in the future and therefore it was important that we examine the
Society’s readiness and future relevance as a major player and to
protect its reputation as “the medical aid you can trust”. In this regard
2011 witnessed the first phase of the re-engineering process with the
implementation of a changed organisational structure that came into
effect at the beginning of May 2011. The process resulted in a staff
compliment reduction from 104 to 89 and the introduction of more
business focused units. Thereafter the best part of the year focused on
the development of the five year business strategy to run from 2012 to
2016.
One other key development during the year was the awarding to BOMaid
of a three year Private Public Partnership (PPP) contract with the Ministry
of Health to manage government patients who are on the national ARV
program. This saw the Society taking on just under 17,000 members
which it now manages and monitors on behalf of the Government of
Botswana.
THE GROUP
The Group performance for the year reflects positive results with revenue
growing by 31.7% to P362.3mln. As much as P34.0mln or 39% of this
growth is as a direct result of the PPP contract which came into effect in
February of 2011. Further positive growth in revenue (35.5% and 18.3%)
was reflected in revenue generation by the subsidiary MRI Botswana
Limited and the Society respectively.
Cost of services on the other hand increased by 26% year on year giving
rise to a contribution surplus of P61.6mln or 68.6% increase over the
previous period. Operating expenditure including a re-organisational
cost of P5.4mln increased from P38.7mln to P50.1mln. On the other

With other income of P10.3mln generated from investments and
Group income tax of P0.7mln the Group end the year with a surplus of
P21.2mln.

Net cash generated from operating activities reflect a positive P8.0mln
against a net outflow of P6.6mln in 2010.

Financial Outturn
Despite the general economic pressure from the previous financial year
and the effects of more constituent members opening up membership
to competing schemes, the scheme continues to grow with total
membership standing at 34,556 principal members or a 12.6% year on
year growth and covering a total of 76,592 lives.
This growth coupled with the 7.8% subscription adjustment at the
beginning of the year as well as the PPP contract resulted in the years’
revenue of P340.1mln or an increase of 31.4%. Claims paid out on the
other hand amounted to P288.8mln an increase of 25.8% from last year
resulting in a contribution surplus of P51.3mln for the year.
The claims payout to subscription ratio excluding the PPP contract
stood at 84.4% against a ratio of 88.7% achieved in 2010. This
improvement in performance was attributable to the additional managed
care interventions introduced during the course of the year.
With operating expenses of P41.8mln and other income of P12.3mln the
year ended with the Society reflecting a surplus of P21.8mln.
General Operations
As reported earlier, significant focus was directed on the re-organisation
processes in an endeavour to position the Society to deliver more
efficient and effective service and products to its membership. Claims
turn around times have been shortened and the electronic claims
processing has been extended to more service providers.
The latter part of the year saw us addressing the long queues at the
dispensary with the re-opening of the revamped dispensary towards the
end of 2011.
FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Society is poised for “take off” as the re-organisation gave birth to
an extremely ambitious strategy developed for the period 2012-2016.
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Chief Executive’s Report (cont.)
The expected gains were somewhat dampened with the challenges
on tariff levels brought about by Service Providers who were seeking
to
implement a new billing process. This lead to an initial impasse
between the medical aid industry and a large number of essential Service
Providers. BOMaid has been at the centre of finding a lasting long term
solution involving all stakeholders. To this end more focus will be placed
on coming up with an acceptable cost model for implementation in the
near future.

CONCLUSION
On behalf of staff, I would like to conclude my report by once more
thanking you the Membership sincerely for the confidence and trust you
have shown in the Society. To the Board of Management I say thank you
for the continued direction and confidence you have had and still have in
your staff and management.
Thank you.

The implementation of an electronic queuing system in the dispensary
introduced during the second quarter of 2012 will see further improvement
in the service to members. Furthermore electronic processes in the
submission of subscriptions as well as payments direct to members will
be introduced in the coming year.
Continued focus will be placed on improving member benefits as there
has already been an adjustment upwards on the oncology benefit
category. Other new products in these trying times are being looked at
for recommendations and implementation in the future.
HUMAN RESOURCES
Key to our success is investment in staff and their acknowledgement
and recognition as an important asset.
To this end the Society is continuously alive to ensuring that staff are
adequately developed and that priority is given to necessary training.
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General Information
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
A A Bogatsu
(Chairperson)
S Bogatsu
(Vice Chairperson)
D J Alexander
(Chief Executive Officer)
S M Sealetsa
F Sebeela			
R M Mgadla
M K Molebatsi			
J M Monyake
G Rutta
B K Sikwa
(Resigned 24 November 2011)
B E Nthoi
(Appointed 1 December 2011)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER				
D J Alexander
SECRETARY
B Debele

(Up to 31 January 2012)

S T Molodi

(Appointed 1 Feberuary 2012)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The society raises funds from and grants assistance to its members and their dependants to defray medical expenses.
BUSINESS ADDRESS
Plot 50638, Fairgrounds Office Park, Gaborone
AUDITORS
KPMG
Plot 67977
Fairgrounds Office Park
Off Tlokweng Road
Gaborone
BANKERS
Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited
First National Bank of Botswana Limited
Barclays Bank of Botswana Limited
Stanbic Bank of Botswana Limited
African Banking Corporation of Botswana Limited
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Refer to note 28 regarding events after the reporting date.
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Senior Leadership Team

Alexander Meela

Dr Lorato Mangadi

Thulaganyo Molebatsi

Dr Josephine Nkosana

Brightson Chikoja

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Malawi

Position:
Management Accountant

Position:
Managed Care Unit
Manager

Position:
Business Development
Manager

Position:
Claims Manager

Position:
Finance Manager

Qualification:
BMed (University of
Newcastle, Australia)

Qualification:
BSc, MSc Actuarial
Science(University of Kent
at Canterbury, UK)

Qualification:
PhD Women’s Health,
MWH (Mellbourne,
Australia),B.ed(Nursing)

Qualification:
ACCA, CFA

Qualification:
BAcc(UB),
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Senior Leadership Team (cont.)

Sethunya Molodi

Mpaphi Ndubo

Rudo Nthobatsang

Tshepo Gaadingwe

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Nationality:
Botswana

Position:
Legal & Compliance Officer
(Board Secretary)

Position:
Internal Auditor

Position:
Client & Customer Service
Manager

Position:
IT Manager

Qualification:
LLB(UB), CIS(ICSA)

Qualification:
BAcc(UB)

Qualification:
BNSc (UB), MBL(UNISA)

Qualification:
BSc, MSc Information
Technology(NMMU)
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Board’s responsibility statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

The Board of Management (“the Board”) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the group annual financial statements and annual
financial statements for Botswana Medical Aid Society (“the Society”), comprising the statements of financial position at 31 December 2011, and the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Society’s Rules and the
Societies Act of Botswana.
The Board is responsible such internal control as is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and to maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management.
The Board has made an assessment of the ability of the Society and its subsidiaries to continue as going concerns and have no reason to believe the
businesses will not be going concerns in the foreseeable future.
The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the group annual financial statements and annual financial statements are fairly presented in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.
Approval of the group annual financial statements and annual financial statements of the Society:
The group annual financial statements and annual financial statements of the Society, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the board on
01 June 2012 and are signed on their behalf by:
										
										

S BOGATSU
Finance, Audit And Risk Committee
Chairman

D J ALEXANDER
Chief Executive Officer
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Chartered Accountants
Plot 67977, Off Tlokweng Road,
Fairground Park
P O Box 1519, Gaborone, Botswana

Telephone
Fax
Internet http://www.kpmg.com

+267 391 2400
+267 397 5281

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Botswana Medical Aid Society

We have audited the group annual financial statements and the annual financial statements of Botswana Medical Aid Society, which comprise the
statements of financial position at 31 December 2011, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 18 to 53.
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and in the manner required by the Society’s Rules and the Societies Act of Botswana and for such internal control as the Board determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity and group’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity or group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Botswana Medical
Aid Society at 31 December 2011, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Society’s Rules and the Societies Act of
Botswana.

KPMG
Partner: Francois Roos
Practicing number: 20010078: 45
Date: 01 June 2012
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Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							 Group			

Society

Notes		
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
										
Revenue 			
362 260 928		
275 125 025		
340 136 320		
258 801 955
- Revenue from contracts			
22 124 608		
16 323 070		
-		
- Subscriptions received			
302 072 603		
255 301 312		
302 072 603		
255 301 312
- Wellness programme income			
4 106 847		
3 500 643		
4 106 847		
3 500 643
- MOH PPP income			
33 956 870		
-		
33 956 870		
-			
		
Cost of services 								
Benefits paid 								
- Dental			
13 464 778		
12 978 953 		
13 464 778		
12 978 953
- Hospital			
82 871 546		
72 692 703 		
82 871 546		
72 692 703
- Consultation, drugs and rehabilitation			
103 824 411		
95 035 748 		
103 824 411		
95 035 748
- Maternity			
10 127 999		
6 736 556 		
10 127 999		
6 736 556
- Optical and appliances			
6 662 506		
7 529 714 		
6 662 506		
7 529 714
- Funeral			
1 497 250		
507 750 		
1 497 250		
507 750
- Medical Rescue International			
- 		
-		
5 829 554		
5 159 980
- Chronic ailments			
18 607 583		
15 404 798 		
18 607 583		
15 404 798
- Special benefits
1		
12 435 711		
10 375 918 		
12 790 238		
10 375 918
- Wellness Project costs 			
2 448 385		
3 079 174 		
2 717 978		
3 079 174
- Legal expenses			
105 613 		
41 400		
105 613 		
41 400
- MoH PPP costs			
29 584 796 		
- 		
30 350 055 		
Direct costs 			
19 061 719		
14 233 889		
-		
			
300 692 297		
238 616 603		
288 849 511		
229 542 694			
				
Contribution surplus			
61 568 631		
36 508 422		
51 286 809		
29 259 261 		
					
Other income 			
102 006		
17 521		
-		
-			
					
Expenditure								
Depreciation		
2 742 620		
1 815 514		
1 291 333 		
588 983
Reorganisation cost			
5 434 857		
- 		
5 434 857
Administration expenses			
41 935 928		
36 866 696		
35 086 155		
30 652 458
			
50 113 405		
38 682 210		
41 812 345		
31 241 441
		
Operating surplus/(deficit)
2		
11 557 232		
(2 156 267 )
9 474 464		
(1 982 180 )
Interest received
3
5 538 191		
5 708 780 		
5 160 903		
5 159 719
Interest paid 			
(123 918 )
(65 244 )
-		
Dividend and other income
4
4 934 056		
3 038 174 		
7 149 005		
5 833 459
		
10 348 329 		
8 681 710 		
12 309 908		
10 993 178
								
Surplus before taxation			
21 905 561		
6 525 443		
21 784 372		
9 010 998
								
Taxation
5
(723 566 )
276 140 		
-		
-			
					
Surplus for the year		
21 181 995		
6 801 583		
21 784 372		
9 010 998
Attributable to:								
Minority interest		
844 752		
511 699		
-		
Members of the Society		
20 337 243		
6 289 884		
21 784 372		
		
21 181 995		
6 801 583		
21 784 372		
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Statements of comprehensive income (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							 Group			
			
2011		
2010		
2011		
					
Total comprehensive income 								
Surplus for the year
21 181 995		
6 801 583		
21 784 372		
					
Other comprehensive income 								
Net current year revaluation for
property and listed investments
		
14 965 339		
6 405 831		
14 965 339		
Low claims reserve payments during the year			
(5 655 )
(17 479 )
(5 655 )
Total comprehensive income
for the year			
36 141 679		
13 189 935		
36 744 056		

Society
2010
9 010 998			

6 405 831
(17 479 )
15 399 350
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Statements of financial position
at 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							
Assets			
		

			

Notes				

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment			
6				
Goodwill			
7				
Available for sale investments 			
9				
							
Current assets
Inventories 			
10
			
Trade receivables 			
11		
		
Other receivables 			
12		
		
Short term investments 			
13				
Cash and cash equivalents 			
21				
Taxation refundable 			
				
							

Group
2011		

2010			

35 544 584		
371 093		
145 872 333		
181 788 010		

34 444 314		
371 093		
130 896 935		
165 712 342

1 102 171 		
19 873 916		
2 412 738 		
54 338 721 		
37 731 481 		
206 850 		
115 665 877		

1 299 936
10 507 244
2 042 840
49 595 213
30 388 603
317 145
94 150 981

297 453 887		

259 863 323

123 270 235		
6 155 913		
491 867		
134 421 052		
264 339 067		

102 844 583
7 338 049
497 522
119 455 713
230 135 867

816 935		
356 474		
1 374 520		
2 547 929		

245 224
1 400 669
1 645 893

18				
19		
		
20		
		
21				
22				
15				
16				
			

5 417 		
13 598 823		
562 196 		
4 266 479		
11 540 264		
503 405		
90 307		
30 566 891		

5 310
12 060 417
899 010
5 915 766
8 954 187
246 873
28 081 563

Total equity and liabilities 							

297 453 887		

259 863 323

Total assets							
Equity
Funds and reserves
Accumulated funds							
Minority interest							
Low claims reserve 							
Revaluation reserve 			
14				
							
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations 			
15				
Bank loan 			
16				
Deferred taxation 			
17				
							
Current liabilities
Deferred rental liability 			
Trade and other payables 			
Subscriptions received in advance 			
Outstanding cheques for claims 			
Provision for outstanding claims 			
Current portion of finance lease obligations
			
Short term portion of bank loan
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Statements of financial position (cont.)
at 31 December 2011 (in Pula) (in Pula)

		 							
Assets			

			

Notes				

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 			
6				
Investment in subsidiary 			
8				
Available for sale investments			
9				
							
Current assets
Inventories 			
10		
		
Trade receivables 			
11		
		
Other receivables 			
12				
Short term investments			
13				
Cash and cash equivalents 			
21				
							
Total assets
							
Equity
Funds and reserves
Accumulated funds 							
Low claims reserve 							
Revaluation reserve 			
14		
		
					
		
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables			
19				
Subscriptions received in advance 			
20				
Outstanding cheques for claims 			
21				
Provision for outstanding claims 			
22				
							
Total equity and liabilities							

Society
2011		

2010

24 563 550		
12 090 334		
145 872 333		
182 526 217		

24 809 729
12 090 334
130 896 935
167 796 998

1 007 662 		
15 464 237		
2 112 589		
54 338 721 		
33 279 406		
106 202 615		

1 233 261
8 103 613
2 042 840
49 595 213
23 234 519
84 209 446

288 728 832		

252 006 444

127 912 705		
491 867 		
134 421 052		
262 825 624		

106 128 333
497 522
119 455 713
226 081 568

9 534 269		
562 196 		
4 266 479		
11 540 264		
25 903 208		

10 155 913
899 010
5 915 766
8 954 187
25 924 876

288 728 832		

252 006 444
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Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)
Group
Accumulated		
Low claims		
Revaluation		
funds		
reserve		
reserve
							

Total funds		
attributable		
to members

Minority		
interest

Total

210 120 870		

9 712 029		

219 832 899

-		

(24 500 )

(24 500 )

(1 288 )
6 289 884		

-		
511 699		

(1 288 )
6 801 583

(17 479 )

- 		

(17 479 )

6 405 831		
-		

-		
(2 861 179 )

6 405 831
(2 861 179 )

222 797 818		

7 338 049		

230 135 867

-		

88 409		

76 920		

165 329

- 		-

20 337 243		

844 752		

21 181 995

(5 655 )

-		

(5 655 )

-		
14 965 339		
14 965 339		
- 		- 		-

-		
(2 103 808 )

14 965 339
(2 103 808 )

Balance at 01 January
2009
96 555 987		
515 001
13 049 882		
Accumulated funds of
subsidiary at the date of
proportionate acquisition
-		
-		
Current year loss
eliminated against the
cost of the
proportionate cost of
investment
(1 288 )		-		Surplus for the year
6 289 884		
-		
-		
Payments during the
year
(17 479 )		Net current year
revaluation
-		
-		
6 405 831		
Dividends declared
-		
-		
Balance at 31 					
December 2010
102 844 583		
497 522		
119 455 713		
Reduction in tax on fair 					
value adjustment
88 409		
-		
Surplus for the year
Payments during the
year
Net current year
revaluation
Dividends declared
Balance at 31
December 2011

20 337 243		
-		
-		
-		
123 270 235 		

(5 655)		

491 867 		
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Statements of changes in equity (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)
Society
		
			

Accumulated		
f unds		

Low claim		
reserve		

Revaluation		
reserve		
			
								
Balance at 01 January 2010			
97 117 335		
515 001		
113 049 882		
Surplus for the year			
9 010 998		
-		
-		
Payments during the year			
-		
(17 479 )
-		
Net current year revaluation			
-		
-		
6 405 831		

Total funds
attributable
to members
210 682 218
9 010 998
(17 479 )
6 405 831

Balance at 31 December 2010			
Surplus for the year			
Payments during the year			
Net current year revaluation			

106 128 333		
21 784 372		
-		
-		

497 522
-		
(5 655 )
-		

119 455 713		
-		
-		
14 965 339		

226 081 568
21 784 372
(5 655 )
14 965 339

Balance at 31 December 2011			

127 912 705		

491 867 		

134 421 052		

262 825 624
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Statements of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							 Group			

Society

			
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
										
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 												
Surplus before taxation 			
21 905 561		
6 525 443		
21 784 372		
9 010 998
Adjusted for:									
Depreciation			
2 742 621		
1 815 514		
1 291 333		
588 983
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment			
(18 403 )
(29 )
-		
Positive goodwill on acquisition of investment			
-		
20 746		
-		
Movement in operating lease accrua			
107		
1 683		
-		
Increase in impairment loss accrual			
(343 225 )
(322 042 )
-		
Interest paid			
123 918		
65 244		
-		
Interest received 			
(5 538 191 )
(5 708 780 )
(5 160 902 )
(5 159 719 )
Dividends received 			
(4 767 554 )
(2 776 271 )
(6 982 503 )
5 571 556 )
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 			
14 104 834		
(378 492 )
10 932 299		
(1 131 294 )
Movement in trade receivables			
(9 023 447 )
(2 362 724 )
(7 360 624 )
(2 928 785 )
Movement in other receivables			
(369 898 )
(1 462 895 )
(69 749 )
(1 462 895 )
Movement in inventories			
197 765		
(402 583 )
225 599		
(443 921 )
Movement in subscriptions received in advance			
(336 814 )
(367 050 )
(336 814 )
(367 050 )
Movement in trade and other payables 			
1 538 406		
1 104 240		
(621 644 )
1 242 842
Movement in provision for outstanding claims 			
2 586 077		
(2 795 751 )
2 586 077		
(2 795 751 )
Cash generated from/(used in) operations			
8 696 923		
(6 665 255 )
5 355 144		
(7 886 854 )
Interest paid 			
(123 918 )
(65 244 )
-		
Tax (paid)/refunded			
(559 545 )
145 616 		
-		
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 			
8 013 460		
(6 584 883 )
5 355 144		
(7 886 854 )
INVESTING ACTIVITIES								
Net purchases of investments 			
(10 059 )
(46 534 )
(10 059 )
Purchase of plant and equipment			
(3 848 438 )
(1 118 761 )
(1 045 154 )
Proceeds on disposal of plant and equipment			
23 950		
9 645		
-		
Interest received 			
5 538 191		
5 708 780		
5 160 902 		
Dividends received 			
4 767 554		
2 776 271		
6 982 503		
Net cash generated from investing activities
		
6 471 198		
7 329 401		
11 088 192		
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 								
Finance obtained 			
1 752 061		
352 090		
-		
Capital repayment of finance obligations			
(477 040 )
(452 713 )
-		
Benefits paid through low claims reserve		
(5 655 )
(17 479 )
(5 655 )
Dividends paid			
(2 018 354 )
(2 469 705 )
-		
Net cash used in financing activities			
(748 985 )
(2 587 807 )
(5 655 )
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
		
13 735 673		
(1 843 289 )
16 437 682		
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			
74 068 050		
75 911 339		
66 913 966		
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			
87 803 723		
74 068 050		
83 351 648		
Represented by:								
Short term investments 			
54 338 721		
49 595 213		
54 338 721		
Outstanding cheques for claims			
(4 266 479 )
(5 915 766 )
(4 266 479 )
Bank and cash balances 			
37 731 481		
30 388 603		
33 279 406		
			
87 803 723		
74 068 050		
83 351 648		
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(46 534 )
(271 757 )
5 159 719
5 571 556
10 412 984
(17 479 )
(17 479 )
2 508 651
64 405 315
66 913 966
49 595 213
(5 915 766 )
23 234 519
66 913 966
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Significant accounting policies
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

The consolidated financial statements comprise the separate financial statements of the Society and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”).
Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements are presented in Pula, which is also the functional currency.
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments which are stated at fair value and leasehold land and
buildings which are stated at its revalued amount. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the group and are consistent with those
used in the previous year.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
Significant judgements in the application of International Financial Reporting Standards consist mainly of the evaluation of the carrying amount of
goodwill for possible impairment (per note 7), the evaluation of the carrying amount of the investment in subsidiary for possible impairment (per note 8),
the assessment of residual values and depreciation rates applied to property, plant and equipment (per note 6), the evaluation of impairment associated
with trade receivables (per notes 11, 12 and 26) and calculating the provision for outstanding claims (per note 22).
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Society. Control exists when the Society has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains or losses or income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s share of identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, with the exception of leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in
value.
Leasehold land and buildings are stated at valuation on the basis of the most recently established open market values with current additions measured
at cost. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the reporting date. The group currently obtains valuations of the land and buildings every five years.
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each year end, with effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment items are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Leasehold land and buildings
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment and software
Office equipment and fittings
Telephone equipment
Medical equipment

Remaining period of lease
4 years
4 years
10 years
5 years
4 years

Work-in-progress includes the costs of materials, labour and other costs incurred in the construction of work-in-progress at reporting date. Work-inprogress is transferred to property, plant and equipment when the assets are completed and commissioned. Work-in-progress is not depreciated and
depreciation will commence when the work-in-progress has been completed and is commissioned.
The residual value of each part of property, plant and equipment, if not insignificant, is reassessed annually. The useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reassessed annually.
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts and included in the statement of comprehensive
income.
Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial year in which these costs are incurred.
Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered
to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
An impairment loss in respect of the financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share
similar credit risk characteristics.
All impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. The reversal of the impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
Non-financial assets
The carrying values of the non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash inflow that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

Impairment (continued)
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
Impairment losses recognised in the prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that these losses have decreased or no longer
exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
and amortisation, if no impairment was recognised.
Investment in subsidiary
The investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment.
The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:
•
the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred, and equity instruments issued by the society, and
•
any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of business units. The goodwill consists of the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not amortised but tested
annually for impairment. Goodwill is reviewed annually for events or changes in circumstances which may indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first in, first out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The cost of inventories includes costs incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Obsolete, redundant
and slow moving inventory items are identified on a regular basis and are written down to their estimated net realisable values.
Taxation
Taxation on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred taxation. Taxation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the related taxation is also recognised in equity.
Current taxation comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to taxation payable for previous years.
Deferred taxation is provided based on temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base. The amount of deferred taxation provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred taxation is
charged to the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to a transaction that is recognised directly in equity, or a business
combination. The effect on taxation of any changes in tax rates is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
relates to items previously charged or credited directly to equity.
A deferred taxation asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the associated unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related taxation benefit will be realised.
The society is not subject to taxation as it is exempt from taxation in terms of the second schedule of the Botswana Income Tax Act (Chapter 52:01).
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

Retirement benefits
The group has defined contribution pension schemes which are funded through payments to insurance companies. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Employee entitlements to annual leave, bonuses, medical aid, pension contributions and housing benefits are recognised when they accrue to employees
and an accrual is made for the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the group’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Provisions
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability.
Provision is made for estimated outstanding claims incurred during the financial year, net of members portions, which are payable in the succeeding
financial year. Members have up to four months to submit their claims.
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business.
Revenue from the sale of goods is exclusive of VAT and discounts granted and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the
following conditions have been satisfied:
•
•

The group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
The group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

Botswana Medical Aid Society Annual Report 2011

29

Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

Revenue (continued)
• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably;
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group; and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue from rendering of services is exclusive of VAT and discounts granted and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the
following conditions have been satisfied:
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• The stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably;
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group; and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue from subscriptions is recognised on a receipt basis, based on the fund rules.
Interest received
IInterest received is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
Interest paid
Interest paid is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which these expenses are incurred using the effective interest rate
method.
Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pula at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Pula at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Financial instruments
Financial assets
The group’s principal financial assets comprise of the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables, which generally have 30 to 90 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.
Investments
Investments are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost. Investments, including managed funds, are classified as available for
sale investments and are measured subsequently at fair value. The fair value of the trading investments is based on quoted bid prices. Gains and losses
arising on the fair value are recognised directly in equity. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in the statement of comprehensive income. Available for sale investments are recognised or derecognised by the group on the date it
commits to purchase or sell the investment.
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

Financial liabilities
The group’s principal financial liabilities comprise of the following:
Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables, which are normally settled on 30 to 90 day terms, are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the group.
Interest bearing liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received and include acquisition charges
associated with the borrowing/loan. After initial recognition, all interest-bearing loans and borrowings, other than liabilities held for trading, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement.
For liabilities carried at amortised cost (which are not part of a hedging relationship), any gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when the liability is derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
Gains and losses on subsequent measurement
Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of financial instruments are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which the change arises.
Offset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when the group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following are new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which are not yet effective at the reporting date and have not been
applied in preparing the annual financial statements:
• IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements: : IAS 27 (2011) supersedes IAS 27 (2008). IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accounting and
disclosure requirements for separate financial statements, with some minor clarifications. The standard, which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013
financial statements, is not expected to have any significant impact on its financial statements.
• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011): IAS 28 (2011) supersedes IAS 28 (2008) and carries forward the existing accounting and
disclosure requirements with limited amendments. The amendments specifies that IFRS 5 is applicable to an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale; and on cessation of significant influence or joint control, even if
an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the entity does not re-measure the retained interest. The standard,
which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013 financial statements, is not expected to have any impact on its financial statements.
• IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments: The standard addresses the initial measurement and classification of financial assets and will replace the relevant
sections of IAS 39. Under IFRS 9 there are two options in respect of classification of financial assets, namely, financial assets measured at amortised cost
or at fair value. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when the business model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
when they give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets are measured at
fair value. Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from hybrid contracts that have a financial asset host. The standard, which becomes effective
for the Group’s 2016 financial statements, is not expected to have a significant impact on its financial statements.
• IFRS 9 (2010) Financial Instruments: The standard addresses the measurement and classification of financial liabilities and will replace the relevant
sections of IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities are the same as per IAS 39, except for the
following aspects:
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
Fair value changes for financial liabilities (other than financial guarantees and loan commitments) designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are
attributable to the changes in the credit risk of the liability will be presented in other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the fair value
change is recognised in profit or loss. However, if this requirement creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value
change is presented in profit or loss. The determination as to whether such presentation would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch is made on
initial recognition and is not subsequently reassessed.
Under IFRS 9 (2010) derivative liabilities that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, are measured at fair value.
The standard, which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013 financial statements, is not expected to have a significant impact on its financial statements.

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to certain transitional provisions. The standard establishes that
classification of the joint arrangement depends on whether parties have rights to and obligations for the underlying assets and liabilities. According
to the standard, joint arrangements are divided into two types, each having its own accounting model:

Joint operations whereby the jointly controlling parties, known as joint operators, have rights and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement, or
Joint ventures whereby the joint controlling parties, known as joint ventures, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
In terms of the standard, all joint ventures will have to be equity accounted. The standard, which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013 financial
statements, is not expected to have any impact on its financial statements.

•   IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: The standard combines the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, associates and joint

arrangements, as well as unconsolidated structured entities in a single standard. The required disclosures aim to provide information to enable users
to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s interests in other entities, and the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. The adoption of the new standard will increase the level of disclosure provided for an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. This standard will be incorporated into the Group’s 2013 financial statements
and will require comprehensive disclosures in respect of subsidiaries acquired and which are included in the Group’s consolidated annual financial
statements.

• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: The standard will be applied prospectively and comparatives will not be restated. The standard introduces a single
source of guidance on fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities by defining fair value, establishing a framework
for measuring fair value and setting out disclosures requirements for fair value measurements. The key principles in the standard are as follows:
Fair value is an exit price;
Measurement considers characteristics of the asset or liability and not entity-specific characteristics;
Measurement assumes a transaction in the entity’s principle (or most advantageous) market between market participants;
Price is not adjusted for transaction costs; and
Measurement maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable inputs.
The three-level fair value hierarchy is extended to all fair value measurements.
The standard, which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013 financial statements, will require additional and comprehensive disclosures with regards
to the fair value measurements applied to financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
• IFRS 7 amendment: Transfer of financial assets: The new standard requires a reporting entity to additionally disclose the transfer of financial assets
that are not derecognised entirely or derecognised entirely but for which the entity retains continuing involvement. The revision, which becomes
mandatory for the Group’s 2012 financial statements, is not expected to have a significant impact on its financial statements.
• IFRIC 14: IAS 19 requires certain criteria to be met before an entity may recognise an asset in respect of a defined benefit plan. IFRIC 14 provides
additional guidance on how these criteria should be interpreted, in particular where the plan requires minimum contributions to be made (regardless of
the surplus). In terms of the Pension Funds Act, an entity operating a defined benefit plan is required to submit a scheme to the Registrar of Pension
Funds, setting out the contributions which will be made to eliminate its statutory deficit. This is a minimum funding requirement to cover an existing
shortfall for past service which will be dealt with in accordance with IFRIC 14. The revision, which becomes mandatory for the Group’s 2012 financial
statements, is not expected to have any impact on its financial statements.
• Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Defined benefit plans: This amendment requires actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. The corridor method and the recognition of actuarial gains and losses in profit or loss are no longer permitted. Past
service costs as well as gains and losses on curtailments/settlements are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Expected returns
on plan assets are calculated based on the rates used to discount the defined benefit obligation. The definitions of short-term and other long-term
employee benefits have been amended and the distinction between the two depends on when the entity expects the benefit to be settled. The
amendment, which becomes effective for the Group’s 2013 financial statements, is not expected to have any impact on its financial statements.
• Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendment requires an entity to present those items of other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future separately from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The related taxation effects
for the two sub-categories have to be shown separately. This is a change in presentation and will have no impact on the recognition or measurement
of items in the financial statements. This amendment will be applied retrospectively and the comparative information will be restated. The amendment
will be incorporated in the Group’s 2013 financial statements.
Low claim reserve
The group rewards members who make low or no claims. The reward is comprised of increased claim limits. Where necessary, a transfer is made
each year from the operating surplus to the low claims reserve and costs of the increased limits are charged to the reserve. The reserve is however
available for other purposes as may be determined by the management committee and members.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							 Group			
			

2011		

2010		

Society
2011		

1. Special benefits								
Drug and laboratory tests 			
10 475 628		
9 312 937 		
10 830 155		
Other tests			
858 719		
439 675 		
858 719		
Staff salaries 			
1 906 090		
1 381 387 		
1 906 090		
Recoveries from members			
(804 726 )
(758 081 )
(804 726 )
Net special benefits paid during the year			

12 435 711		

2010		
9 312 937
439 675
1 381 387
(758 081 )

10 375 918 		

12 790 238		

10 375 918

2. Operating surplus/(deficit) 							
The operating surplus/ (deficit) is stated
after taking into account the following items:							
							
Audit fees - current year			
463 964		
440 647		
Directors - fees			
147 876		
139 140		
- remuneration			
-		
43 948		
Bad debts recovered 			
(23 687 )
(217 770 )
Fidelity insurance claim refund			
-		
(149 940 )
Movement in impairment loss accrual			
(343 225 )
(322 042 )
Depreciation 			
2 742 621		
1 815 514		
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss			
(110 392 )
163 925		
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment			
(18 403 )
(29 )
Staff costs 			
33 627 004		
28 151 425		
Operating lease rent - property			
135 234		
127 074		
- equipment			
-		
5 184		

277 964		
70 770		
-		
-		
-		
-		
1 291 333		
(112 755 )
-		
22 356 697		
-		
-		

278 829
49 140
588 983
168 083
20 192 777
-

3. Interest received 							
Call accounts			
465 689		
516 752		
Short term deposits			
5 072 502		
5 192 028		

417 487		
4 743 416		

472 964
4 686 755

			
5 538 191		
5 708 780		
							
4. Dividend and other income 							
Dividends received			
4 767 554 		
2 776 271 		
Agency commission			
87 672		
100 879 		
Sundry income			
82 288		
163 868 		
Agency expenses
		
(3 458 )
(2 844 )

5 160 903		

5 159 719

6 982 503		
87 672		
82 288 		
(3 458 )

5 571 556
100 879
163 868
(2 844 )

			

7 149 005		

5 833 459

4 934 056		

3 038 174 		
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Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)

		 							 Group			
			

2011		

Society

2010		

2011		

5. Taxation 							
Company tax at 22% (2010: 15%)			
478 736		
81 158 		
Additional company tax			
-		
54 105		
ACT credit on dividends paid			
(85 454 )
(391 474 )
Withholding tax on dividends
191 104 		
-		
Deferred tax charge			
139 180		
131 756		
Over-provision of taxation in prior financial years			
-		
(151 685 )
			
723 566		
(276 140 )

-		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		

-

21 784 372		

9 010 998

4 792 562		
(4 792 562		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		
-		

2 252 750
(2 252 750 )
-		
-

Tax reconciliation							
Surplus before taxation			
21 905 561		
6 525 443		
							
							
Taxation at 22% (2010: 25%) statutory rate			
4 819 223		
1 631 361		
Income exempt from income tax			
(4 792 562 )
(2 252 750 )
Final withholding tax on dividends			
191 104		
-		
Expenses not deductible for tax 			
437 653		
348 358		
Other differences			
14 422		
408 294		
Deferred tax charge			
139 180		
131 756		
Prior year over-provision			
-		
(151 685 )
ACT credit on dividends paid			
(85 454 )
(391 474 )

2010		

Taxation per statement of comprehensive income			
723 566		
(276 140 )
-		
							
Additional company taxation (ACT) reserves were available for off-set against withholding tax on future dividends declared. The Botswana Income Tax
regulations were revised with effect from 01 July 2011 and ACT reserves not utilised at 01 July 2011 were forfeited.
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Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)
6. Property, plant and equipment
			
			

Leasehold land		 Motor vehicles		
and buildings 				

Office		
Equipment,		
equipment		 furniture and fittings 		

6.1 Group					
Cost/valuation
Balance at beginning of year 			
35 792 811		
3 439 202		
6 924 722		
7 353 819		
Additions
		
69 877 		
1 348 579		
1 190 275 		
20 470 		
Disposals			
-		
(16 860 )
-		
Balance at end of year			
35 862 688 		
4 787 781		
8 098 137 		
7 374 289 		
								
Accumulated depreciation
										
Balance at beginning of year		
4 489 132
2 634 254
6 539 571
5 403 283 		
Charge for the year			
1 113 852 		
641 307 		
888 349		
99 113		
Disposals			
-		
(11 313 )
-		
Balance at end of year			
5 602 984		
3 275 561		
7 416 607		
5 502 396		
											
Net book values 											
At 31 December 2011			
30 259 704		
1 512 220		
681 530 		
1 871 893		
											
At 31 December 2010			
31 303 679 		
804 948 		
385 151 		
1 950 536 		

Work-in		
progress

Total

-		 53 510 554
1 219 237		 3 848 438
-		
(16 860 )
1 219 237 		 57 342 132			
-		 19 066 240
- 		 2 742 621
(11 313 )
-		 21 797 548
1 219 237		 35 544 584
- 		 34 444 314

Leasehold land and buildings comprise of the following:
Lot 50638 Fairgrounds, Gaborone, measuring 4,386 square meters, which property is held under a Deed of Fixed Period State Grant for 50 years
commencing 4 February 1994. This property was independently valued at P23 930 000 by CB Richards Ellis, Chartered Surveyor on the open market
value basis in 2010.
Lot 60601, Block 7, Gaborone, measuring 1,1707 hectares, which property is held under a Deed of Fixed Period State Grant of 50 years commencing
27 November 2008. This property was independently valued by MG Properties on the open market value basis in May 2010 at P4 050 000.
Lot 20623 Gaborone West, Extension 34, measuring 1 562 square metres, which property is held under a Deed of Fixed Period State Grant of 50 years
commencing 17 February 1999. This property was independently valued by MG Properties on the open market value basis in September 2011 at P4
300 000.
Tribal Lot 724, Maun measuring 1 337 square metres held under a Deed of Fixed Period State Grant of 50 years commencing 15 October 1996. This
property was independently valued on the open market value basis by Roscoe Bonna Valuers, Chartered Surveyors in May 2010 at P700 000.
The open market value basis is defined as the estimated amount for which the property could be exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller
in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing, wherein the parties each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by management at each year end, with the effect of any changes in
estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. The review did not highlight any requirement for an adjustment to the residual values and useful lives
used in the current or prior periods.
Motor vehicles with a net book value of P1 399 152 (2010: P536 808) and a printer with a net book value of P35 526 (2010: P42 397) are encumbered
as per note 15.
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
					 Leasehold land		
Motor vehicles		
Office equipment		
6.2 Society					
and buildings 				 furniture and fittings 		

Equipment,		
equipment		

Work-in		
progress

Cost/valuation											
Balance at the beginning of period 27 611 455		
544 576		
6 924 723		
1 551 843		
-		
Additions				
69 877 		
- 		
214 070		
20 470 		
740 737
Balance at the end of period
27 681 332		
544 576 		
7 138 793		
1 572 313		
740 737
										
Accumulated depreciation 										
Balance at the beginning of period
3 681 455		
510 767		
6 539 571		
1 091 075		
-		
Charge for the perio			
932 040 		
33 809 		
226 371		
99 113 		
- 		
Balance at the end of period
4 613 495 		
544 576		
6 765 942 		
1 190 188 		
- 		
											
Net book values 										
At 31 December 2011
		
23 067 837 		
- 		
372 851		
382 125 		
740 737 		
										
At 31 December 2010			
23 930 000 		
33 809 		
385 152 		
460 768 		
- 		

Total

36 632 597
1 045 154
37 677 751
11 822 868
1 291 333
13 114 201
24 563 550
24 809 729

The leasehold land and buildings comprise Lot 50638 Fairgrounds, Gaborone, measuring 4,386 square meters, which property is held under a Deed
of Fixed Period State Grant for 50 years commencing 4 February 1994. The leasehold land and buildings were independently revalued to P23 930
000 by CB Richards Ellis, Chartered Surveyor on the open market value basis in 2010. The revaluation surplus was credited to the revaluation reserve.
The open market value basis is defined as the estimated amount for which the property could be exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing, wherein the parties each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed by management at each year end, with the effect of any changes in
estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. The review did not highlight any requirement for an adjustment to the residual values and useful lives
used in the current or prior periods.
6.3 Operating lease commitments
Operating leases relate to three office facilities with lease terms of between 2 to 3 years, with an option to extend for a further year. Two of the three
operating lease contracts contain a fixed escalation clause of 10% per annum. The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at
the expiry of the lease period. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

		 							Group				
2011		
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
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114 968		
64 018		
178 986		

2010		
89 144		
65 226		
154 370		

Society

2011		

2010

-		
-		
-		

-
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Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
6.4 Capital commitments		
The board approved the development of a fit-for-purpose office building at a cost of P13.3 million. This building is currently being constructed on Lot
60601, Block 7, Gaborone. Costs of P478 500 were incurred to the current reporting date and included as work-in-progress. P10 million of the total
development cost will be financed by financial institutions with the remaining balance financed through cash flows from operating activities.
The board approved the extensions of the dispensary at a cost of P853 831. The dispensary is currently being extended on Lot 50638 Fairgrounds,
Gaborone. Costs of P740 737 were incurred to the current reporting date and included as work-in-progress. The remaining cost of the extension will be
financed through cash flows from operating activities.

		 							Group				
2011		

2010		

Society

2011		

2010

-		

-

7. Goodwill							
Balance at beginning and end of year

371 093		

371 093		

The goodwill arose on acquisition of MRI Botswana Limited with effect from 11 July 2008. The valuation of goodwill was determined by comparing the
fair value of the consideration paid to acquire the shareholding and the proportionate share of the estimated fair values of the company’s net assets.
Management’s assessment of goodwill impairment at year end did not indicate that goodwill was impaired. The assessment of goodwill impairment was
based on the net asset value (including current market values of properties) and the estimated future cash flows of MRI Botswana Limited.

		 							 Group			

Society

2011		
2010		
2011		
								
8. Investment in subsidiary 							
							
Balance at beginning of year
-		
-		
12 090 334		
Acquisition during year
-		
-		
-		
Balance at end of year
-		
-		
12 090 334		
							
Reconciliation of the movement in
shares acquired in MRI Botswana							
							
Balance at beginning of year
-		
-		
9 672 267		
Shares acquired during year
-		
-		
-		

2010
			
12 043 800
46 534
12 090 334

9 635 040
37 227

Balance at end of year
-		
-		
9 672 267		
9 672 267
							
A detailed impairment assessment performed by management at year end indicated that the investment in MRI Botswana Limited was not impaired.
The assessment was based on the net asset value (including current market values of properties) and the estimated future cash flows of MRI Botswana
Limited.
The above shares were acquired at P1.25 each. MRI Botswana Limited is a company incorporated in Botswana.
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		 							 Group			
2011		

2010		

Society
2011		

9. Available-for-sale investments							
							
At valuation							
9.1 Available for sale listed investments - local 							
							
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BOTSWANA
43 154 800		
36 681 580		
43 154 800		
16 598 000 ordinary shares
BARCLAYS BANK OF BOTSWANA
1 590 000 ordinary shares
10 812 000		
8 427 000		
10 812 000		
SEFALANA HOLDING CO.
786 616 ordinary shares
2 202 525		
2 123 863		
2 202 525		
SECHABA INVESTMENT TRUST CORP.
200 000 ordinary shares
2 410 000		
2 174 000		
2 410 000		
G4S SECURITY
150 000 Ordinary shares
900 000		
450 000		
900 000		
BOTSWANA INSURANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
887 779 ordinary shares
8 611 456		
9 321 680		
8 611 456		
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK LTD
500 000 ordinary shares
4 500 000		
4 030 000		
4 500 000		
K Y S INVESTMENTS LIMITED
154 200 ordinary shares
100 230		
100 230		
100 230		
FURNITURE MART
322 020 (2010:27 060) ordinary shares
483 030		
349 074		
483 030		
ENGEN
30 000 ordinary shares
165 000		
190 500		
165 000		
CHOBE HOLDINGS
56 969 ordinary shares
122 483		
142 423		
122 483		
TURNSTAR HOLDINGS
1 000 000 linked units
1 300 000		
1 500 000		
1 300 000		
Local investments

74 761 524		

65 490 350		

74 761 524		

2010

36 681 580
8 427 000
2 123 863
2 174 000
450 000
9 321 680
4 030 000
100 230
349 074
190 500
142 423
1 500 000
65 490 350

At valuation							
9.2 Available for sale investments - offshore 							
							
African Alliance - Global Income Fund
13 900 033		
12 110 213 		
13 900 033		
Botswana Insurance Fund Management offshore equities
26 431 233		
28 130 957 		
26 431 233		
Botswana Insurance Fund Management fixed interest fund
18 079 		
78 991 		
18 079 		
Botswana Insurance Fund Management offshore bonds
13 334 438		
11 468 917 		
13 334 438		
Botswana Insurance Fund Management offshore bonds
5 686 800		
2 688 158 		
5 686 800		
African Alliance - Global Allocation Fund
3 030 940		
2 780 079 		
3 030 940		
Fleming Asset Management
8 709 286 		
8 149 270 		
8 709 286 		

12 110 213
28 130 957
78 991
11 468 917
2 688 158
2 780 079
8 149 270

Offshore investments
Total investments
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71 110 809		

65 406 585 		

71 110 809		

65 406 585

145 872 333		

130 896 935		

145 872 333		

130 896 935
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		 							 Group			

Society

			
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010			
											
10. Inventories							
								
Dispensary drugs, medicines and other consumables
1 102 171		
1 299 936 		
1 007 662		
1 233 261
								
11. Trade receivables
							
Trade receivables 			
20 419 900		
11 396 453		
15 464 237		
8 103 613
Less impairment loss accrual			
(545 984 )
(889 209 )
-		
			
19 873 916		
10 507 244		
15 464 237		
8 103 613
								
12. Other receivables
							
Dividends receivable 			
57 207
29 495 		
57 207 		
29 495
Contributions			
464 660		
916 016 		
464 660 		
916 016
Other receivables 			
1 890 871 		
1 097 329 		
1 590 722		
1 097 329
			
2 412 738 		
2 042 840 		
2 112 589 		
2 042 840
								
13. Short term investments
							
African Alliance
		
1 757 		
1 665 		
1 757 		
1 665
Botswana Building Society fixed deposit			
54 336 964		
49 593 548 		
54 336 964		
49 593 548
			
54 338 721 		
49 595 213 		
54 338 721 		
49 595 213
								
14. Revaluation reserve							
								
Available for sale reserve 							
Balance at beginning of year 			
101 019 951		
109 928 760 		
101 019 951 		
109 928 760
Revaluation during the year			
14 965 339		
(8 908 809 )
14 965 339		
(8 908 809 )
Balance at end of year			
115 985 290		
101 019 951		
115 985 290		
101 019 951
								
Property revaluation							
Balance at beginning and end of year			
18 435 762		
3 121 122		
18 435 762		
3 121 122
Revaluation during the year			
- 		
15 314 640 		
- 		
15 314 640
Balance at end of year			
18 435 762		
18 435 762		
18 435 762		
18 435 762
								
Total revaluation reserve at end of year			
134 421 052		
119 455 713		
134 421 052		
119 455 713
								
15. Finance lease obligations
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default.
Finance charges are calculated at an effective interest rate of 10% per annum on motor vehicles and 13% per annum on the printer. Annual interest on
finance leases is charged at prime minus 1% for motor vehicles and prime plus 2% on the printer. The finances leases are secured over the motor vehicles
and printer which were financed at a cost of P1 802 728 (2010: P942 539) and P54 300 (2010: P54 300) respectively.
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15. Finance lease obligations (continued)		
							 			
									 Group				
Society 		
			
2011		
2010		
2011		
						
							
Gross finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments 							
Not later than 1 year 			
625 788		
286 084 		
-		
Later than one year but not more than five years
		
894 266 		
263 822 		
-		
		
1 520 054 		
549 906 		
-		
Future finance charges on the finance lease liabilities			
(199 714 )
(57 809 ) 		-

2010

Present value of the finance lease liabilities			
1 320 340		
492 097		
-		
								
The present value of the finance lease liabilities is as follows: 							
Not later than 1 year 		
503 405 		
246 873 		
-		
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years		
816 935 		
245 224 		
-		
			
1 320 340		
492 097 		
-		

-

-

-

16. Bank loan
Loan amount received (1 April 2011)
		
Repayments			
			

500 000		
(53 219 )
446 781		

-		
-		
-		

-		
-		
-		

-

Not later than 1 year			
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years			
			

90 307		
356 474		
446 781		

-		
-		
-		

-		
-		
-		

-

Interest is calculated at an effective interest rate of 11% per annum on the bank loan. Interest on the bank loan is charged at prime. The bank loan is
unsecured and is repayable over a five year period commencing 1 April 2011.

		 							 Group			
			
17. Deferred taxation
17.1 Reconciliation			
Balance at beginning of year 			
Charge for the year
Fair valuation of subsidiary land and buildings 			
Balance at end of year			
17.2 Analysis of deferred taxation
Accelerated capital allowances on plant
and equipment 			
Fair valuation of subsidiary land and buildings			
Deferred rental liability			
Taxation loss			
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2011		

Society

2010		

2011		

2010

(1 400 669 )
(139 180 )

(1 268 913 )
(131 756		

-		
-		

-		
-

165 329		
(1 374 520 )

-		
(1 400 669 )

-		
-		

-

(163 287 )
(1 212 425 )
1 192 		
-		
(1 374 520 )

(44 566 )
(1 377 754 )
1 328		
20 323		
(1 400 669 )

-		
-		
-		
-		
-		

-
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		 							 Group			

Society

			
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
											
18. Deferred rental liability							
Balance at beginning of year			
5 310		
3 627 		
Charge to statement of comprehensive income			
107 		
1 683 		
Balance at end of year			
5 417 		
5 310 		

-		
-		
-		

19. Trade and other payables 							
Staff related accruals			
4 824 041		
4 228 015		
Accruals and other creditors			
8 774 783		
7 832 402		
Amounts due to related parties (note 25.2)			
-		
-		
			
13 598 824		
12 060 417		

3 663 182		
5 133 103		
737 984		
9 534 269		

3 347 965
4 992 565
1 815 383			
10 155 913

20. Subscriptions received in advance
These are amounts received from members during the current year which relate to the following financial year. These amounts were classified as
current liabilities as the benefits in respect thereof are expected to be utilised during the subsequent financial year.

		 							 Group			
			
2011		
2010		
2011		
								
21. Cash and cash equivalents 							
Cash and bank balances (note 21.1)			
37 731 481		
30 388 603		
33 279 406		
Short term investments (note 21.2)			
54 338 721		
49 595 213		
54 338 721		
Outstanding cheques for claims (note 21.3)			
(4 266 479 )
(5 915 766 )
(4 266 479 )
			
87 803 723		
74 068 050		
83 351 648		

Society
2010			
23 234 519
49 595 213
(5 915 766 )
66 913 966

21.1 Cash and bank balances comprise cash and deposits with financial institutions which are payable on demand.
21.2 These investments matured during the year and were reinvested with local financial institutions for periods less than three months. Interest
in respect of these investments generally accrues at the prevailing market rates.
21.3 These amounts are un-presented cheques in respect of benefits (claims) paid, which had not been cleared by the bankers at year-end. The
		
majority of these payments cleared subsequent to year end.
					
22. Provision for outstanding claims
This balance represents the fair value of claims which were due and payable as at year end. The obligation approximates the total value of claims
which were subsequently paid within the four month period in accordance with the fund rules.
23. Fidelity cover 									
In accordance with the rules of the fund, fidelity cover of P2 000 000 (2010: P2 000 000) has been procured.
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24. Contingent liabilities 					
						
The group is currently a defendant of a lawsuit of P108 000 by Dr Vincent Setlhare. The group’s lawyers advise that it is probable that the group will not
be found liable in this case and as such no provision has been raised.
The group had filed a case against the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Board (PPADB) and a competitor on account of its alleged irregular
awarding of the GEMVAS contract to the competitor. Judgement was made in the case and the group was successful. However, the court only awarded
costs in favour of the group and a decision on how the costs will be shared by the defendants has not been made.
The group is currently defending a case in which an individual has filed a claim of P355 000 with interest at 10% per annum for an accident which
occurred in March 2006.
Two ex-employees have instituted compensation claims against the group in the Industrial Court for a total of BWP43 300.
The Board of management have evaluated the current circumstances with regards to the above outstanding cases against the group and are confident
that no liability or negative cash flows will be incurred as a result of the outstanding claims.
25. Related parties
Related party transactions include all transactions between the Society and entities under common ownership or control and the remunerations to the
board of management and key members of management. Transactions with related parties are entered into on an arm’s length basis and in the normal
course of business.

		 							 Group			

Society

2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
											
25.1 Remuneration to key members of management
							
Directors’ fees
147 876		
139 140		
70 770		
49 140
Compensation to key members of management
6 428 016		
4 989 332		
3 104 678		
2 533 880
		
6 575 892		
5 128 472		
3 175 448		
2 583 020

25.2 Related party transactions
These include payments by Botswana
Medical Aid Society to MRI Botswana
Limited for services rendered:

Medical rescue services                                                                                                                    5 240 602               4 657 249                                                        
Disease management services                                                                                                          765 259                             Counselling services                                                                                                                             354 527                 277 200                                                                                                               
Well @ Work programme                                                                                                                      269 593
408 523  
6 629 9 81
5 342 9 72                                                      
     Year end balances arising from the rendering of services:
MRI Botswana Limited (note 19)

                   737 984              1 815 383

The balance payable at year-end is interest free, unsecured and without any fixed repayment terms.                                                                                  
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26. Financial instruments
					
Exposure to interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and liquidity risk occurs in the normal course of the group’s business. Each of these financial risks are
described below together with a summary of the ways in which the group manages these risks.
		
Market risk					
Fluctuation in interest rates impact on the value of short-term cash investments, giving rise to price risk. Other than ensuring optimum money market
rates for deposits, the group does not make use of financial instruments to manage this risk.
Interest rate risk					
Financial instruments subject to interest rate risk are as follows:

		

						Group			

Society

2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
											
		
Finance lease obligations
(1 320 340) 		
(492 097)		
-		
Bank loan
(446 781) 		
-		
-		
Short terms investments
54 338 721		
49 595 213		
54 338 721		
49 595 213
Call accounts and money market funds
26 560 296		
24 344 160		
23 934 812		
18 416 076
		
79 131 896		
73 447 276		
78 273 533		
68 011 289
The group invests with reputable institutions and is subject to normal market interest rate risk. The effective annual interest rates on the financial
instruments noted above at year-end were as follows:
Rand call accounts
Pula call accounts
GBP call accounts
Finance lease liabilities (motor)
Finance lease liabilities (printer)
Bank loan
African Alliance
Botswana Building Society

2.58%		
0.00%		
1.25%		
10.00%		
13.00%		
11.00%		
4.46%		
10.00%		

3.08%		
4.00%		
1.25%		
10.00%		
13.00%		
-		
10.50%		
11.50%		

2.58%		
0.00%		
1.25%		
-		
-		
-		
4.46%		
10.00%		

The following are the Pula equivalent amounts held by the group in its call accounts:
				
GBP		
Pula		
							
2011 call deposit			
734 506		
25 750 729		
							
							
2010 call deposit			
2 502 647		
21 764 638		
The following are the Pula equivalent amounts that were held by the Society in its call accounts:
				
GBP		
Pula		
						
2011 call deposit			
734 506		
23 125 245		
							
							
2010 call deposit			
2 502 647		
15 836 554		

3.08%
4.00%
1.25%
10.50%
11.50%

Rand
75 061
76 875		

Rand
75 061
76 875
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
Maturity analysis for short term investments					
Interest rate		
Maturity date		
							
2011				
African Alliance 					
4.46%		
31/03/2012		
Botswana Building Society					
10.00%		
31/03/2012		
								
2010					
African Alliance 					
10.50%		
31/03/2011		
Botswana Building Society					
11.50%		
31/03/2011		
				 					

Pula amount
1 757
54 336 964
54 338 721
1 665
49 593 548
49 595 213

Sensitivity to interest rate movement
A change of 50 basis points in interest rates during the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) the surplus by an equal amount in either
direction, as shown below:
			
Current rate		
New rate		
							
			
Group 2011
Finance lease liabilities (motor)			
10.00%		
10.50%		
Finance lease liabilities (printer) 			
13.00%		
13.50%		
Bank loan			
11.00%		
11.50%		
							
Short term investments						
African Alliance 			
4.46%		
4.96%		
Botswana Building Society			
10.00%		
10.50%		
Call and short term deposit funds			
0.00%		
0.50%		
							
Group 2010					
Finance lease liabilities (motor)			
10.00%		
10.50%		
Finance lease liabilities (printer)			
13.00%		
13.50%		
							
Short term investments			
African Alliance 			
10.50%		
11.00%		
Botswana Building Society			
11.50%		
12.00%		
Call and short term deposit funds			
4.00%		
4.50%		
							
Society 2011						
African Alliance 			
4.46%		
4.96%		
Botswana Building Society			
10.00%		
10.50%		
Call and short term deposit funds			
0.00%		
0.50%		
							
Society 2010						
African Alliance 			
10.50%		
11.00%		
Botswana Building Society			
11.50%		
12.00%		
Call and short term deposit funds			
4.00%		
4.50%		
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Principal 		
amount

Effect on
the surplus			

(1 289 046 )
(31 294 )
(446 781 )
(1 767 121 )

(6 445 )
(156 )
(2 234 )
(8 835 )

1 757 		
54 336 964 		
26 560 296		
80 899 017		

9
271 684
132 801			
404 494

(444 097 )
(48 000 )
(492 097 )

(2 221 )
(240 )
(2 461 )

1 665 		
49 593 548 		
24 344 160		
73 447 276		

8
247 968
121 721
367 236			

1 757 		
54 336 964 		
23 934 812		
78 273 533		

9
271 684
119 674
391 367

1 665 		
49 593 548 		
18 416 076		
68 011 289		

8
247 968
92 080
340 056
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
Credit risk					
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to the financial instrument fails to meet its obligation.
					
Reputable financial institutions are used for investing and cash handling purposes. All money market instruments and cash equivalents are placed with
financial institutions registered in Botswana or South Africa. Banks in Botswana are not rated however each of the banks concerned are subsidiaries of
major South African or United Kingdom registered institutions.
					
The group does not hold collateral as security in respect of its financial assets and the maximum credit exposure as at the reporting date is equal to the
carrying amounts of the following financial assets (which approximate their fair values):
									
						Group			

Society

			
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
										
Trade receivables 			
19 873 916		
10 507 244		
15 464 237		
8 103 613
Other receivables 			
2 412 738		
2 042 840		
2 112 589		
2 042 840
Cash and cash equivalents
		
87 803 723		
74 068 050		
83 351 648		
66 913 966
Investments (offshore)			
71 110 809		
65 406 585		
71 110 809		
65 406 585
			
181 201 186 		
152 024 719
172 039 283		
142 467 004
Based on the default rates, the group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of medical aid subscriptions receivable and included
in trade receivables, as these balances relate to customers with a good credit history with the group. Total medical aid subscriptions included in trade
receivables at year were P15 464 237 (2010: P8 103 613).
					
The group establishes an allowance for impairment which represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade receivables. The main component
of this allowance consists of a specific loss component based on balances exceeding agreed upon credit terms.
					
As at year end, group trade receivables of P18 230 506 (2010: P9 768 877) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
		
				

Group

		

Society

		
2011		
2010		
2011		
2010
										
Up to 2 months 			
15 638 324		
7 973 743		
14 855 863		
7 633 432
2 to 3 months			
436 394		
759 743		
40 749		
419 260
3 to 4 months 			
383 324		
292 665		
36 504		
50 921
Over 4 months 			
1 772 464		
742 726		
531 121		
			
18 230 506 		
9 768 877		
15 464 237		
8 103 613
Of the group trade receivable balance at year end, a total of P3 471 286 (2010: P1 688 613) is due from medical aid societies and financial services
companies as analysed below:
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
							
							

Group

					

2011				

2010

Botswana Public Officers Medical Aid Scheme					
China National Electric Company					
Directorate on Corruption and Economic Crime 					
Gem Diamonds Botswana 					
Messina Copper Botswana					
Ministry of Agriculture					
Ministry of Health					
Motor Vehicle Accident Fund					
Pula Medical Aid Society					
					

482 422		
		
220 467				
334 383 				
429 837 				
445 099				
301 678				
338 715				
639 471				
279 214				
3 471 286 				

424 405
993 544
270 664
1 688 613

Movement for the provision for impairment			
Balance at beginning of year					
Decrease in accrual for impairment allowance					
Balance at end of year					

889 209				
(343 225 )			
545 984				

1 211 251
(322 042 )
889 209

Liquidity risk
The group is exposed to daily operational payments and payment of claims, trade and other payable balances and finance lease obligations.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, excluding estimated interest payments and the impact of netting agreements:
					
Group 2011
					
Trade and other payables					
Finance lease liabilities				
Bank loans				
Subscriptions received in advance
			
Outstanding cheques for claims
			
Provisions for outstanding claims
				
					
Group 2010
Trade and other payables					
Finance lease liabilities 				
Subscriptions received in advance				
Outstanding cheques for claims					
Provisions for outstanding claims 				
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Carrying amount		

Contractual		

6 months or less

(13 598 823 )
(1 320 340 )
(446 781 )
(562 196 )
(4 266 479 )
(11 540 264 )
(31 734 883 )

(13 598 823)		
(1 320 340)		
(446 781)		
(562 196)		
(4 266 479)		
(11 540 264)		
(31 734 883)		

(13 598 823 )
(251 703 )
(45 154 )
(562 196 )
(4 266 479 )
(11 540 264 )
(30 264 619 )

(12 060 417 )
(492 097 )
(899 010 )
(5 915 766 )
(8 954 187 )
(28 321 477 )

(12 060 417)		
(492 097) 		
(899 010) 		
(5 915 766)		
(8 954 187)		
(28 321 477)		

(12 060 417 )
(146 699 )
(899 010 )
(5 915 766 )
(8 954 187 )
(27 976 079 )
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
		 			
Liquidity risk (continued)
					
					
Society 2011
Trade and other payables 					
Subscriptions received in advance			
Outstanding cheques for claims 			
		
Provisions for outstanding claims					
				
					
Society 2010					
Trade and other payables 					
Subscriptions received in advance					
Outstanding cheques for claims 				
Provisions for outstanding claims
			
				

Carrying amount		

Contractual		

6 months or less

(9 534 269)		
(562 196)		
(4 266 479)		
(11 540 264)		
(25 903 208)		

(9 534 269 )
(562 196 )
(4 266 479 )
(11 540 264 )
(25 903 208 )

(9 534 269 )
(562 196 )
(4 266 479 )
(11 540 264 )
(25 903 208 )

(10 155 913)		
(899 010)		
(5 915 766)		
(8 954 187)		
(25 924 876)		

(10 155 913 )
(899 010 )
(5 915 766 )
(8 954 187 )
(25 924 876 )

(10 155 913 )
(899 010 )
(5 915 766 )
(8 954 187 )
(25 924 876 )

Exposure to currency risk					
The group is exposed to foreign currency risk for transactions that are denominated in a currency other than Pula.
					
The group does not take cover on foreign currency as it regards the Pula as a stable currency.
					
The group’s exposure to foreign currency risk based on notional amounts is analysed as follows:
			
GBP		
Rand 		
									
2011					
Cash and cash equivalents					
Provision for outstanding claims 				
					

62 312		
- 		

				
Year-end translation rate – Buy					
Year-end translation rate – Sell				

GBP/BWP		
11.378		
11.788		

2010					
Cash and cash equivalents					
Provision for outstanding claims
			

245 505		
-		

					
Year-end translation rate – Buy					
Year-end translation rate – Sell					

GBP/BWP		
9.804		
10.194		

79 114 		
(605 501 )

Pula 					
equivalent
809 567
(574 479 )

ZAR/BWP		
1.117
1.054						
76 952
(956 220 )

2 579 522
(955 742 )				

ZAR/BWP
1.061
1.001
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26. Financial instruments (continued)
		 			
Currency risk (continued)
A 10 percent strengthening of the Botswana Pula against these currencies at year-end would have decreased equity and surplus for the year by the
amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.
				
					

Equity

Surplus for
the year		

			

2011
		
(21 372)
(21 372)		
2010 				 (218 804)
(218 804)		
					
		
A 10% weakening of the Pula against the above currencies at year end would have had the equal but opposite effect on the equity and surplus for the
period to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
					
Price risk					
The group has investments in equity funds and equity instruments listed on the Botswana Stock Exchange. These investments are classified as available
for sale.
Fluctuations in the share prices impact on the value of the investments, giving rise to price risk.
The group does not take out financial instruments to manage this risk as fluctuations are normal in the short term. The share prices are expected to
stabilise over the long term.
As at year-end, the fair value of the equity instruments were as follows:
				
Pula
					
Fair value 2011				145 872 333
			
Fair value 2010		 		130 896 935
A 10% movement in the above stated fair values at year end would result in the following gains or losses of equal amount:
				
Pula
					
2011				14 587 233
			
2010		 		13 089 694
These gains or losses are allocated directly to equity.
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26. Financial instruments (continued)

Categorisation of assets and liabilities (Group)

Financial assets and liabilities

2011
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment
Work-in-progress
Goodwill
Available for sale
investments
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short term
investments
Cash and cash
equivalents
Taxation refundable

Current/ non-current distinction
Financial
liabilities at
Other nonamortised financial assets
cost
and liabilities

Total

Financial assets
designated at
fair value

Loans and
receivables

Current assets
and liabilities

Non-current
assets and
liabilities

34 325 347
1 219 237
371 093

-

-

-

34 325 347
1 219 237
371 093

-

34 325 347
1 219 237
371 093

145 872 333
1 102 171
19 873 916
2 412 738

145 872 333
-

19 873 916
2 412 738

-

1 102 171
-

1 102 171
19 873 916
2 412 738

145 872 333
-

54 338 721

54 338 721

-

-

-

54 338 721

-

37 731 481

-

37 731 481

-

-

37 731 481

-

206 850
297 453 887

200 211 054

60 018 135

-

206 850
37 224 698

206 850
115 665 877

181 788 010

1 320 340
446 781

-

-

1 320 340
446 781

-

503 405
90 307

816 935
356 474

1 374 520

-

-

-

1 374 520

-

1 374 520

5 417

-

-

-

5 417

5 417

-

13 598 823

-

-

13 598 823

-

13 598 823

-

562 196

-

-

562 196

-

562 196

-

4 266 479

-

-

4 266 479

-

4 266 479

-

11 540 264
33 114 820

-

-

11 540 264
31 734 883

1 379 937

11 540 264
30 566 891

2 547 929

LIABILITIES
Finance lease
obligations
Bank loan
Deferred taxation
Deferred rental
liability
Trade and other
payables
Subscriptions
received in advance
Outstanding
cheques for claims
Provision for
outstanding claims
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26. Financial instruments (continued)

Categorisation of assets and liabilities (Group) (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities

2010
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment
Goodwill
Available for sale
investments
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short term
investments
Cash and cash
equivalents
Taxation refundable

Current/ non-current distinction

Financial
liabilities at
Other nonamortised financial assets
cost
and liabilities

Total

Financial assets
designated at
fair value

Loans and
receivables

Current assets
and liabilities

Non-current
assets and
liabilities

34 444 314
371 093

-

-

-

34 444 314
371 093

-

34 444 314
371 093

130 896 935
1 299 936
10 507 244
2 042 840

130 896 935
-

10 507 244
2 042 840

-

1 299 936
-

1 299 936
10 507 244
2 042 840

130 896 935
-

49 595 213

49 595 213

-

-

-

49 595 213

-

30 388 603

-

30 388 603

-

-

30 388 603

-

317 145

-

-

-

317 145

317 145

-

259 863 323

180 492 148

42 938 687

-

36 432 488

94 150 981

165 712 342

492 097
1 400 669

-

-

492 097
-

1 400 669

246 873
-

245 224
1 400 669

5 310

-

-

-

5 310

5 310

-

12 060 417

-

-

12 060 417

-

12 060 417

-

899 010

-

-

899 010

-

899 010

-

5 915 766

-

-

5 915 766

-

5 915 766

-

8 954 187

-

-

8 954 187

-

8 954 187

-

-

28 321 477

1 405 979

28 081 563

1 645 893

LIABILITIES
Finance lease
obligations
Deferred taxation
Deferred rental
liability
Trade and other
payables
Subscriptions
received in advance
Outstanding
cheques for claims
Provision for
outstanding claims

29 727 456
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26. Financial instruments (continued)

Categorisation of assets and liabilities (Society)
Financial assets and liabilities

2011
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment
Work-in-progress
Investment in
subsidiary
Available for sale
investments
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short term
investments
Cash and cash
equivalents

LIABILITIES
Trade and other
payables
Subscriptions
received in advance
Outstanding
cheques for claims
Provision for
outstanding claims

Current/ non-current distinction

Financial
liabilities at
Other nonamortised financial assets
cost
and liabilities

Total

Financial assets
designated at
fair value

Loans and
receivables

Current assets
and liabilities

Non-current
assets and
liabilities

23 822 813
740 737

-

-

-

23 822 813
740 737

-

23 822 813
740 737

12 090 334

-

12 090 334

-

-

-

12 090 334

145 872 333
1 007 662
15 464 237
2 112 589

145 872 333
-

15 464 237
2 112 589

-

1 007 662
-

1 007 662
15 464 237
2 112 589

145 872 333
-

54 338 721

54 338 721

-

-

-

54 338 721

-

33 279 406
288 728 832

200 211 054

33 279 406
62 946 566

-

25 571 212

33 279 406
106 202 615

182 526 217

9 534 269

-

-

9 534 269

-

9 534 269

-

562 196

-

-

562 196

-

562 196

-

4 266 479

-

-

4 266 479

-

4 266 479

-

11 540 264

-

-

11 540 264

-

11 540 264

-

25 903 208

-

-

25 903 208

-

25 903 208

-
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26. Financial instruments (continued)

Categorisation of assets and liabilities (Society) (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities

2010

Current/ non-current distinction

Financial
liabilities at
Other nonamortised financial assets
cost
and liabilities

Total

Financial assets
designated at
fair value

Loans and
receivables

Current assets
and liabilities

Non-current
assets and
liabilities

24 809 729

-

-

-

24 809 729

-

24 809 729

12 090 334

-

12 090 334

-

-

-

12 090 334

130 896 935
1 233 261
8 103 613
2 042 840

130 896 935
-

8 103 613
2 042 840

-

1 233 261
-

1 233 261
8 103 613
2 042 840

130 896 935
-

49 595 213

49 595 213

-

-

-

49 595 213

-

23 234 519

-

23 234 519

-

-

23 234 519

-

252 006 444

180 492 148

45 471 306

-

26 042 990

84 209 446

167 796 998

10 155 913

-

-

10 155 913

-

10 155 913

-

899 010

-

-

899 010

-

899 010

-

5 915 766

-

-

5 915 766

-

5 915 766

-

8 954 187

-

-

8 954 187

-

8 954 187

-

25 924 876

-

-

25 924 876

-

25 924 876

-

ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment
Investment in
subsidiary
Available for sale
investments
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short term
investments
Cash and cash
equivalents

LIABILITIES
Trade and other
payables
Subscriptions
received in advance
Outstanding
cheques for claims
Provision for
outstanding claims
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Notes to the financial statements (cont.)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (in Pula)
26. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values
Financial instruments carried at fair value are categorised in three levels by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
-

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices); and
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
					
27. Retirement benefits
The group contributes to the following defined contribution pension plans:
27.1 Botswana Medical Aid Pension Fund which is held independent of the group and is administered by Glenrand MIB Botswana (Pty) Ltd.
27.2 Sentlhaga Pension Fund which is held independent of the group and is administered by Aon Botswana (Proprietary) Limited.
28. Events after the reporting date
The Board of Management has approved a plan to separate the administration of the Fund to a 100% owned subsidiary of the Society, subject
to endorsement by the 2012 Annual General Meeting. The impact on the Society’s financial results and position has not yet been determined. No
significant impact on the group results and financial position is expected.
No other matters, arising since the end of the financial year not dealt with in these financial statements, which would significantly affect the operations
or the results of operations of the Society or Group were noted.
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Notice of the 41st Annual General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Botswana Medical Aid Society will be held in Gaborone at Gaborone Sun
Conference Centre on Friday 29th June 2012 at 10:00 hours.
AGENDA
1. Adoption of the Agenda
2. Minutes of the 40th Annual General Meeting held on 30th June 2011
3. Matters Arising – Action Sheet
4. Chairman’s Report
5. Chief Executive Officer’s Report
6. Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2011
7. Appointment of auditors to the Society
8. Reorganisation Project
9. Proposed Amendments to Book of Rules
10. Approval of continuation of members on the Board of Management who retire in terms of Rule 19(4) read with Rule 19(18) and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
NAME			
Mrs. Macie Molebatsi		
Mrs. Jane Monyake

CONSTITUENT BODY
Individual
Kwena Concrete Products

11. Ratification of appointment of the following Members to the Board of Management by the Board in terms of Rule 19(1)
NAME			
CONSTITUENT BODY
Mr. Batsho Nthoi		
Standard Chartered Bank
Mrs. Matlhogonolo Mponang
Water Utilities Corporation
		
NOTE: The following documents have been mailed to Members;
1.
2.
3.
4.

Audited accounts of the Society for the year ended 31st December 2011.
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on the 30th June 2011.
Communiqué on Reorganisation Project.
Proposed Amendments to Book of Rules.

By order of the Board

S T Molodi						Dennis Alexander
Board Secretary						Chief Executive Officer
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Notes
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Contact Details:
Botswana Medical Aid Society
Plot 50638 Fairgrounds
P O Box 632, Gaborone, Botswana
Tel: (267) 363 3100, Fax: (267) 318 4230
E-mail: bomaid@bomaid.co.bw
Website: www.bomaid.co.bw
Francistown Branch
Plot 661266, Blue Jacket Square
P O BOX 3328, Francistown, Botswana
Tel: (267) 241 0316, Fax: (267) 241 0341

www.bomaid.co.bw

